
  
 

                                                                                                                           
AGENDA 

Regular Meeting 
Charlotte Harbor Community Redevelopment Agency Advisory Committee 

January 9, 2017 - 10:30 a.m. 
CHARLOTTE COUNTY ADMINISTRATION CENTER, Room 119 

18500 Murdock Circle, Port Charlotte, FL  33948 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 
III. Roll Call/Determination of Quorum 
IV. Additions/Deletions to Agenda 
V. Approval of Minutes 

 December 12, 2016 Minutes 
 

VI. Public Comments 
VII. Development Review Report 

 
VIII. Old Business 

a. Harbor Walk Update 
b. Land Development Regulations – Medical Offices 
c. Hands Across the Harbor 
 

IX. New Business 
a. Annual Meeting- Location and Date 
b. Election of Officers – February 13, 2017 

X. Correspondence & Communications 
a. Minutes from Punta Gorda CRA meeting of December 7, 2016  

  
XI. Public Comments 
XII. Staff Comments  
XIII. Attorney Comments 
XIV. Member Comments 

 
XV. Next Meeting/Dates for Your Calendar:   

 February 13, 2017 at 10:30 a.m., Charlotte Harbor CRA Advisory Committee Meeting 
- Charlotte County Administration Center, Room 119 

XVI. Adjournment 
 



 

 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

CHARLOTTE HARBOR 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Monday, December 12, 2016 – 10:30 a.m. 
County Administration Building – Room 119, 18500 Murdock Circle, Port Charlotte, FL 33948 

 

Members Present   
James Herston, Chairman 
Garland Wilson, Vice Chair 
Charlotte Ventola, Secretary  
Denise Garbacz 
Michael Haymans 
Vanessa Oliver 
Delmar Wooden 
 
Members Absent   

Staff Present
Commissioner Ken Doherty 
Debrah Forester, Redevelopment Manager 
Matt Trepal, Community Development 
Kathy M. Knee, Recorder 

 

I. Call to Order 
 Chairman Herston called the December 12, 2016 meeting of the Charlotte Harbor Community 

Redevelopment Agency Advisory Committee to order at 10:33 a.m. in Room 119 of the Charlotte 
County Administration Building.   

II. Pledge of Allegiance 
Chairman Herston led the members and the audience in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 

III. Roll Call/Determination of Quorum 
Roll call was taken by Charlotte Ventola.  A quorum was present. 

IV. Additions/Deletions to Agenda – Debrah Forester requested that the New Business item, Face Lift 
41 – Zone 1 Design Plans with John Elias be heard first.  The Chair agreed this item could be heard 
right after the Development Review Report.   

V. Approval of Minutes  
A Motion was presented by Charlotte Ventola, seconded by Vanessa Oliver and unanimously 
approved to accept the Minutes of the November 7, 2016 Regular Meeting of the Charlotte 
Harbor Community Redevelopment Agency Advisory Committee with a correction to Page 3, the 
last line of Public Comment – change the word “there” to “that”.   
 

VI. Public Comments – Bill Schmitz noted something should be done about the live-aboard and derelict 
boats in the Harbor. Garland Wilson suggested Mr. Schmitz contact the Marine Advisory Committee.  
Staff will let Mr. Schmitz know when the Marine Advisory Committee meets.  Staff will also look into the 
matter.   
 
Douglas Tucker mentioned Dr. Ravid’s Gulfview Medical Institute project and he hopes the County will 
find a way to get it done.  It will be economically good for the CRA.  The property has been vacant for 
some time now and this would be a good project for the area.   
 

VII. Development Review Report - Jim Herston stated there is nothing significant happening.   
 

New Business: Face Lift 41 – Zone 1 Design - John Elias mentioned that a while back staff was 
asked to explore US41 corridor partnerships; an effort to work with businesses to clean up the corridor.  
Seven zones have been created and the Charlotte Harbor CRA is in Zone 1. Although staff attends 
Facelift 41 meetings, they are not the driving force behind it.  Facelift 41 also works with businesses 
along US41 in an effort to beautify it.   A consultant has been hired to do landscape designs for Zone 1.  
Low plants will be in the mediums.  30% design plans were shown and briefly reviewed.  Mr. Elias 
stated that the landscaping must not block the business view and public safety must also be kept in 
mind.  Jim Herston suggested the irrigation of the plants should be part of the plan; reuse water should 
be considered.  Branding the zones is being considered; mascot for sport teams – Pirates, Tarpons, 
etc.  Mike Haymans stated the Committee has been working on the branding of Charlotte Harbor for 
some time – Charlotte Harbor should stay Charlotte Harbor.  Mr. Elias noted that irrigation is being 
considered and may be seen in future plans.  The FDOT will be helping with funding.  The BCC has 
only agreed to fund Zone 1.  Future funding will be brought before them at a later date.  Mr. Elias will 
send a copy of the design plans to staff, who will forward them to the Committee members.     



 
Minutes Charlotte Harbor CRA Advisory Committee Meeting 
December 12, 2016                                                                                  Page 2 
 ________________________________   
 
 

 

 
VIII. Old Business   

Harbor Walk Update – Debrah Forester reported that the irrigation issues at Live Oak Point are being 
addressed.  Staff is working with the contractor.  Community Services staff are trying to revive the trees 
but if this is unsuccessful the trees will be replaced at no cost to the County.  Phase 1B 100% design 
completed and still waiting for Army Corp permit approval before the project can go out for bid.  In the 
meantime, staff is moving forward with request for proposals for a Construction Engineering and 
Inspection Services contract, which should be ready for BCC approval in January.  The final DEP 
$200,000 grant will be presented to the BCC for approval in January.   The Phase 2 concept plan was 
displayed.  Access to Live Oak Point park will be from Melbourne.  US41 access will be for emergency 
use only.  This will go through the development review process on December 15 and then Public Works 
will start prep work for access and parking.   
 
Jim Herston asked about the setback for the corner lot at the access road.  Ms. Forester noted that a 
perpetual use easement for access to Live Oak Point will be obtained from the property owners.  Mike 
Haymans stated this is an example of the need to make adjustments for some properties.    
 
Land Transfer – Debrah Forester mentioned the map for this item was included in the meeting packet.  
During conversations with staff, Community Services noted they may wish to hold on to Parcel 3 on 
Edgewater near the YMCA and dog park. Habitat for Humanity may be interested in Parcel 1.  Ms. 
Forester stated that per advice from the Attorney’s Office, there would be no fees for the transfer of 
property to the CRA.  If the County owns the property and offers it for sale it goes to the highest bidder; 
if the CRA owns the property it allows for more flexibility – there could be an offering aside from money. 
 

Land Development Regulations – Matt Trepal noted the Land Development Regulations went before 
the BCC for the 2nd public hearing on November 22.  They were adopted and are now in effect.   
 
Dr. Ravid’s Proposal – The property is the old boat storage facility on US41 with the chain link fence 
near the Baptist church.  Jim Herston advised he will not vote on this item because he has worked with 
Dr. Ravid.  Mr. Herston noted Dr. Ravid would like to have a medical complex on the property but it is in 
the Riverwalk District and dental and medical facilities are not permitted.  Mr. Herston, who has a 
daughter who is a dentist, did not believe he would have agreed to disallowing dental and medical 
offices.  Ms. Forester noted there are many offices noted on the use table – general, professional and 
medical.  Professional Offices includes medical and dental.  General Office is not defined.  Information 
was recently received so a determination has not been finalized at this time.  The Riverwalk does not 
currently allow Professional or Medical but does include General.   
 
Discussion followed after Michael Haymans asked why medical would not have been included.  
Garland Wilson thought it may have been because of parking.  Debrah Forester noted the vision for the 
Riverwalk was for a tourism and destination space.  General Commercial is provided on US41.  Delmar 
Wooden asked to see a map of the area being discussed.  Douglas Tucker advised that Dr. Ravid owns 
two pieces of land.  The site plan of what could fit on the piece included a medical complex.  Mr. Wilson 
noted that restaurants or public offices could require a lot of parking and they are allowed in Riverwalk.   
 
Mike Haymans stated this project is ready to go and recommended a zoning change; move these 
properties out of the Riverwalk into the Gateway area and this would then leave the Riverwalk as a 
tourist destination.  Jim Herston thought changing the table would be a better solution.  Dr. Ravid is 
moving his current facility to a new location and he would lease space to other medical professionals.  
An FPL pole is very near the middle of this lot and will cost about ½ million dollars to move.  It would be 
difficult to attain height on the property without moving the pole.  Vanessa Oliver stated she had no 
objection to professional offices in the Riverwalk area.  Ms. Oliver noted there is a law firm in the Crab 
House building and parking is not a problem.  Matt Trepal recommended sticking with the Riverwalk 
vision.  If you begin to dilute it, you won’t achieve the original goal.  If the parcel is removed from the 
Riverwalk district a map amendment could take up to 6 months if it needs to go to the State. The doctor 
may not want to wait that long.  Debrah Forester asked if General Office could be defined to allow this 



 
Minutes Charlotte Harbor CRA Advisory Committee Meeting 
December 12, 2016                                                                                  Page 3 
 ________________________________   
 
 

 

use.  Discussion continued and returned to the suggestion of changing the table.  Create a conditional 
use to meet the needs of this project. Mr. Haymans noted that at the BCC hearing at the time of 
adoption, he mentioned that tweaks would be necessary.   
 
 A Motion was presented by Michael Haymans, seconded by Delmar Wooden and unanimously 
approved to recommend to the BCC that an amendment be made to the Use Table to allow 
Medical Offices as a Conditional Use in the Riverwalk and additional text be added with the 
specific conditions, such as parcel size must be 3 acres and not on the water.  Jim Herston did 
not vote on this item.   
 
Hands Across the Harbor – Debrah Forester reminded everyone that the 9th Annual Hands Across the 
Harbor event will take place on Saturday, January 28.  The event, as well as sponsor participation, has 
grown over the years.  CHEC has been the recipient of profits but it is currently going through some 
changes.  Hands Across the Harbor is now a registered non-profit organization.  It was suggested that 
the event be open to other not for profit agencies and profits will be distributed based on the number of 
volunteers and how many entry fees are generated.  This will need to be approved by the BCC.  Mike 
Haymans noted he is Chair/President of CHEC; the CEO position is vacant at this time.   
 
 

IX. New Business  
Face Lift 41 – Zone 1 Design Plans – heard above.   

X. Correspondence/Communications  
The following items were included in the meeting packet: 
 Minutes from Punta Gorda CRA meetings of November 2, 2016. 

XI. Public Comments –  
Harry Thomas asked if the County was going to keep the title to the property at the park.  Ms. Forester 
stated a permanent easement for access would be included when proposals for sale of the property go 
out.  The buyer will need to show a conceptual plan with the County’s easement.  Mr. Thomas thought 
an assisted living facility would be a good project.   

XII. Staff Comments – Debrah Forester noted Diane Quilty would be retiring on January 3 and thanked her 
for her work with the CRA.  Ms. Quilty introduced Natalie Sainchuk who will be taking over her duties.   

XIII. Attorney Comments – None. 
XIV. Member Comments 

 Delmar Wooden noted his support of moving forward with the closure of Bayshore Road closure 
which was brought up at last month’s meeting.  

 Mike Haymans recited his Christmas poem.   

XV. Next Meeting Date 
The next regular meeting of the Charlotte Harbor Community Redevelopment Agency Advisory 
Committee will be held on Monday, January 9, 2017 at 10:30 a.m., in Room 119 of the Charlotte 
County Administration Center, 18500 Murdock Circle, Port Charlotte, FL.  
  

XVI. Adjournment - There being no further business, the meeting ADJOURNED at 12:14 p.m.   
 

 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 

Charlotte Ventola, Secretary      Approved:  ___________________   
 
/kmk                                                                              



Land Development Regulations 
Chapter 3‐9.  Zoning 

Article II.  District Regulations 
Sec. 3‐9‐47.  CHCDC 

    Page 1 

Sec. 3‐9‐47. ‐‐ Charlotte Harbor Community Development Code 

 (c) Zoning districts.  

(1) Zoning districts allowed. The following zoning districts are the only zoning districts permitted within the 
Charlotte Harbor Community: 

j. Charlotte Harbor Riverwalk (CHRW). 

4. Conditional Uses and Structures (C). (For rules and regulations for any use designated 
as a Conditional Use or Structure, see Section 3-9-69. Conditional Uses and Structures) 

(i) Assisted living facility or day care center, adult, seven or more (See Section 3-9-
62. Adult Congregate Living Facilities). 

(ii) Bed and breakfast, one or two bedrooms. 

(iii) Boarding, rooming house. 

(iii) Medical or dental office, clinic, provided the following conditions are met: 

A. Site must have an area of at least 2.5 acres. 

B. Site must have frontage on U.S. 41. 

C. Site must not have frontage on the Peace River or Charlotte Harbor. 

(ivv) Telecommunications facility, 50 feet or less in height (See Section 3-9-68. 
Communication Towers). 

 (2) Use Table. 

Charlotte Harbor Zoning Districts 
P = Permitted Use or Structure C = Permitted With Conditions S = Special Exception 

Specific Use CHCR CHNBR CHMU CHRW 
Specific 

Regulations 
Ampitheater   S S  
Animal hospital, boarding facility   P   
Art, dance, music, photo studio or gallery  P P P  
Assisted living facility or day care center, adult, 
six or less 

P P P P 3-9-69 

Assisted living facility or day care center, adult, 
seven or more 

S P P C 3-9-69 

Auditorium, convention center, performing arts 
center 

  P S  

Bank, financial services  P P P  
Bar, cocktail lounge, nightclub, tavern   S S  
Bed and breakfast, one or two bedrooms C C C C 3-9-69 
Bed and breakfast, three or more bedrooms S C S S 3-9-69 
Boarding, rooming house    C 3-9-69 
Business services   P   
Carpentry, cabinetmaking   S   
Clubhouse, community center  P P   
Cluster housing C    3-9-67 
Community residential home, six or fewer clients    S  
Community residential home, seven or more 
clients 

   S  

Day care center, adult or child  S S S  
Day care center, child S P P   



Land Development Regulations 
Chapter 3‐9.  Zoning 

Article II.  District Regulations 
Sec. 3‐9‐47.  CHCDC 

    Page 2 

Drug store, pharmacy   P   
Dry cleaner   P   
Duplex or triplex  P P P  
Elementary, middle, or high school   S   
Emergency services P  P P  
Equipment rental   C  3-9-47(c)(1)i 
Essential services S S S   
General offices  P P P  
General retail sales and service  P P P  
Heliport, helistop   S   
Homeless shelter   S   
Hotel, motel, inn   P P  
Laundromat   P   
Leisure vehicle rental   S S  
Liquor, package store   S S  
Live-work unit  S    
Marina    P  
Medical or dental office, clinic  P P C  
Minor home occupation C    3-9-74 
Model home C    3-9-78 
Motor vehicle wash   S   
Multi-family  C P P  
Noncommercial boat dock P     
Non-retail food production   S   
Nursing home   P   
Outdoor market or exhibition space   S S  
Paid or public parking lot, garage, structure   P P  
Park P P P P  
Passenger vehicle rental   P S  
Personal services  P P P  
Place of worship S P P  3-9-82 
Printing   S   
Private off-site parking S S C S 3-9-69 
Professional services  P P   
Public building  P P P  
Recreation, indoor   P S  
Recreation, outdoor   P S  
Restaurant  P P P  
Single-family, attached  C C  3-9-47(c)(1)h; i
Single-family, detached P C C  3-9-47(c)(1)h; i
Telecommunications facility, 50 feet or less in 
height 

C C C C 3-9-68 

Transitional/halfway housing   C  3-9-69 
University or college   S   
Vocational, trade, or business school   S   

 



CITY OF PUNTA GORDA, FLORIDA 1 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MINUTES 2 

REGULAR MEETING – DECEMBER 7, 2016 3 
 4 
 5 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Cummings, Keesling, Matthews, Prafke, Sturges, Weikel, Wein 6 
 7 
CITY OFFICIALS PRESENT: Executive Director Kunik, CRA Attorney Levin, Recording 8 
 Secretary Smith  9 
 10 
 11 

Chair Keesling called the meeting to order at 9:08 a.m. 12 

Citizen Comments - CRA Agenda Items Only 13 

Mr. Bruce Laishley, Marina Park LLC, provided a brief history of the development of 14 

Laishley Park since Hurricane Charley, noting Laishley Marina and Laishley Crabhouse 15 

were fully booked with tenants.  He stated there was a parking shortage, adding a 16 

proposal for the design of 40 additional parking spaces had been submitted.  He 17 

stated Marina Park LLC had agreed to pay the first $20,000, which would cover the 18 

design cost as well as relocating a number of trees.  He requested the Community 19 

Redevelopment Agency (CRA) give positive consideration to same.   20 

CRA Project Status Report December 2016 21 

Executive Director Kunik displayed a PowerPoint presentation, as delineated in the 22 

agenda material, reporting on live-aboards at the Laishley Park Marina, Community 23 

Room reservations and pumpout vessel activity for November 2016.   He reviewed the 24 

Marina Building Improvements, advising the window repair project was complete. He 25 

then provided updates on Affordable Housing efforts, the East Side Garden/Fresh 26 

Market, Harborwalk Projects and Punta Gorda Library.  He stated it might be advisable 27 

to add bicycle racks to the Vietnam Memorial Wall entrance, adding same might stop 28 

people from riding bicycles through that area.  He stated there was no prohibition 29 

against pets in the Wall area; however, staff was recommending the CRA consider 30 

including same in the regulations.  31 

Commissioner Prafke commented she was in favor of prohibiting dogs in the Wall 32 

area as well as installation of a bicycle rack at both entrances.  33 

Discussion ensued with consensus to prohibit pets in the Wall area and to install a 34 

bicycle rack. 35 

Commissioner Prafke suggested the bicycle rack be painted in patriotic colors. 36 

Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting of November 2, 2016 37 

Commissioner Sturges MOVED approval, SECONDED by Commissioner Weikel. 38 

MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED 39 



 

DRAFT     CRA Minutes     2      December 7, 2016     DRAFT 

Consideration of an additional parking lot for Laishley Park near the Crab House 40 

Building. 41 

Commissioner Weikel MOVED approval, SECONDED by Commissioner Matthews. 42 

MOTION UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 43 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 44 

Commissioner Prafke complimented staff and Marina Park LLC on the proposed 45 

parking solution. 46 

Commissioner Wein agreed. 47 

Commissioner Sturges welcomed the new CRA members. 48 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 49 

None. 50 

 The meeting was adjourned at 9:19 a.m. 51 
 52 
 53 
 54 
 ____________________________ 55 
 Chair 56 
_________________________________ 57 
Recording Secretary 58 


	12.12.2016 CHCRA Adv Comm Minutes
	Z-16-12-27_CHRW_Revision_v1
	12-07-16 PG CRA

